
NOTICE AND AGENDA
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

AUGUST 25, 2021 - 4:00 P.M.
REGULAR MEETING

CITY HALL - COUNCIL CHAMBERS
415 WEST UNIVERSITY DRIVE

EDINBURG, TEXAS 78541
     
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM

A. Prayer

B. Pledge of Allegiance

2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

A. Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a
public comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A
spokesperson for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in
following these procedures.

4. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT:

 
  A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda as each item is

introduced.
 
  B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered.
 
  C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered.
 



  D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3
minute time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The
use of a spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.

 
  E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and

maintain any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it
believes to be appropriate.

 
  F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board.
 
5. ABSENCES

A. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Mario Escobar from the July 28,
2021 Regular Meeting

6. MINUTES

A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 8, Section 8.503,
Minimization (C) Pervious Pavements, being Lots 2 & 3, Block 47, Santa Cruz
Gardens Subdivision Unit No. 2, located at 900 West F.M. 2812, as requested by
Armando Contreras

B. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301,
Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Danielle Estates
Subdivision, located at 2405 Annette Avenue, as requested by Enrique Casarez

C. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.301,
Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Solana
Subdivision Phase 1, located at 814 Imelda Street, as requested by Willmar G.
Herrera

D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.505,
Easements & Utilities, being Lot 7, Summerset Estates Subdivision, located at 5001
Juno Court, as requested by Rogelio & Christina Deleon

8. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
 

A. Unified Development Code Update

9. INFORMATION ONLY
 



A. Zoning Board of Adjustments- Attendance Roster

10. ADJOURNMENT

I hereby certify that this notice of meeting was posted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act,
V.T.C.A., Government Code, Section 551.041, at the bulletin board located at the main entrance to
the City offices of the City of Edinburg, (415 West University Drive), visible and accessible to the
general public, at 4:00 P.M. on this 20th day of August, 2021.
  

 Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant
 
MEMBERS WHO ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE PLANNING AND ZONING

DEPARTMENT AT 956-388-8202
 

NOTICE
 
PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES WHO NEED TO COMMUNICATE MORE EFFECTIVELY WITH CITY OFFICIALS AND WHO
MAY NEED AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES SUCH AS INTERPRETERS FOR PERSONS WHO ARE DEAF OR HEARING
IMPAIRED ARE REQUESTED TO CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY SECRETARY AT (956) 388-8204 THREE WORKING
DAYS PRIOR TO ANY MEETING SO THAT APPROPRIATE ARRANGEMENTS CAN BE MADE.



415 W. University Drive  •  Edinburg, Texas 78541  •  Phone (956) 388-8202  Fax (956) 292-2080 
www.cityofedinburg.com 

   

  

 

Memo 

 
 
To: Zoning Board of Adjustment Board Members 

From: Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Board Members Absence 

Date: August 20, 2021 
 
 

This is to advise you that action needs to be taken with regards to the absence of Board Member 
Mario Escobar from the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting. 

Should you have any questions, you may call me at 956-388-8202. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



NOTICE AND AGENDA 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

JULY 28, 2021 – 4:00 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING 

EDINBURG CITY HALL 
415 W UNIVERSITY DRIVE 
EDINBURG, TEXAS 78541 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT    MEMBERS ABSENT 
Dr. Samuel Simon        Mario Escobar 
Alex Rios 
Andre Maldonado 
George Cardenas 
Jorge Ortegon 
Jason De Leon 
Eddie Garza 
 

STAFF 
Brian Kelsey, Assistant City Manager 
Kimberly A. Mendoza, Director of Planning & Zoning 
Rita L. Guerrero, Planner I 
Nikki M. Cavazos, Planner I 
Patrizia Longoria, Engineer III 
Peter Hermida, Engineer III 
Daniel A. Colina, Planner I 
Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 
Tilfred Farley, Planning Assistant 
Jaime Ayala, Planner II 
Abel Beltran, Planner I 
Omar Ochoa, City Attorney 
Omar Garza, Fire Marshal 
 

VISITORS 
Hugo Sotelo         Alma Cortez 
Fidel Cortez         Norma Betancourt 
Juan Betancourt        Jenifer Betancourt 
Rick Maldonado        Pablo Santos 
Rene Solis         David Baird 
Aldo Saravia         Connie Trevino 
Ruben Palacios 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER, ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 

The meeting was formally called to order by Vice Chairperson Dr. Samuel Simon at 4:01 P.M. 
 

A. Prayer – Announced by Vice Chairperson Dr. Samuel Simon. 
 

B. Pledge of Allegiance – The Pledge of Allegiance was said. 
 
2. CERTIFICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Vice Chairperson Dr. Samuel Simon verified the posting of the Zoning Board of Adjustment meeting 
notice and its compliance with the Open Meetings Act. Staff indicated the agenda had been posted 
on Friday, July 23, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 28, 2021 
PAGE 2 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

A. Public Comments are limited to three (3) minutes. If a resident desires to make a public 
comment, please notify the Chairperson prior to the start of the meeting. A spokesperson 
for large groups is required. We ask for everyone's cooperation in following these 
procedures. 

 
4. THE FOLLOWING ARE THE MEETING PROCEDURES USED BY THE ZONING 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: 
 

A. All items are generally considered as they appear on the agenda, as each item is 
introduced: 

 
B. Staff will present its findings and recommendation on the item being considered. 

 
C. The party making the request may make a presentation and may address the Board on 

any issues arising during the discussion of the item being considered. 
 
D. Anyone in the audience desiring to speak in favor or in opposition may do so. A 3 minute 

time limit will be given to each person interested in speaking on the item. The use of a 
spokesperson for large groups of people will be required.  

 
E. Once the Chair closes the public hearing, the Board may question anyone and maintain 

any discussion which clarifies the proposal and will then take what action it believes to 
be appropriate. 

 
F. A minimum of four votes are required for an item to be approved by the Board. 

 
5. ABSENCES 
 

A. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Mario Escobar from the June 30, 2021 
Regular Meeting 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. EDDIE GARZA AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JORGE ORTEGON TO EXCUSE 
THE ABSENCE OF BOARD MEMBER MR. MARIO ESCOBAR FROM THE 
JUNE 30, 2021 REGULAR MEETING. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
WITH A VOTE OF 7-0.  

 
B. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Jorge Ortegon from the June 30, 2021 

Regular Meeting 
 

MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON TO EXCUSE THE 
ABSENCE OF BOARD MEMBER MR. JORGE ORTEGON FROM THE JUNE 
30, 2021 REGULAR MEETING. MOTION CARRIED WITH 7 BOARD 
MEMBERS PRESENT, 6 VOTING AYE, AND ONE ABSTENTION. BOARD 
MEMBER MR. JORGE ORTEGON ABSTAINED.  

 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 28, 2021 
PAGE 3 
 

C. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Andre Maldonado from the June 30, 
2021 Regular Meeting 

 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS TO EXCUSE THE 
ABSENCE OF BOARD MEMBER MR. ANDRE MALDONADO FROM THE 
JUNE 30, 2021 REGULAR MEETING. MOTION CARRIED WITH 7 BOARD 
MEMBERS PRESENT, 6 VOTING AYE, AND ONE ABSTENTION. BOARD 
MEMBER MR. ANDRE MALDONADO ABSTAINED.  

 
D. Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Alex Rios from the June 30, 2021 

Regular Meeting 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. GEORGE CARDENAS 
AND SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ANDRE MALDONADO TO 
EXCUSE THE ABSENCE OF BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS FROM THE 
JUNE 30, 2021 REGULAR MEETING. MOTION CARRIED WITH 7 BOARD 
MEMBERS PRESENT, 6 VOTING AYE, AND ONE ABSTENTION. BOARD 
MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS ABSTAINED.  

 
6. MINUTES 

 
A. Consider approval of the Minutes for the June 30, 2021 Regular Meeting 
 

MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. EDDIE GARZA AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON TO APPROVE THE 
MINUTES FOR THE JUNE 30, 2021 REGULAR MEETING. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 2, Section 2.301, 
Residential Uses (D) Fences, being a 4.75 acre tract of land out of Lot 12, Section 240, 
Texas-Mexican Railway Company's Survey, located at 3310 West Rogers Road, as 
requested by Julia G. Cuevas Guerra (WITHDRAWN) 
 
NO MOTION WAS MADE DUE TO ITEM BEING WITHDRAWN. 
 

B. Reconsider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, 
Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 27, Amended Plat of 
Telfair Subdivision, located at 441 Manshir Circle, as requested by Rene Solis 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. GEORGE CARDENAS TO 
DISAPPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST OF RENE SOLIS, TO ALLOW 
FOR THE ENCROACHMENT OF A CARPORT LOCATED IN THE 20 FT. 
FRONT YARD SETBACK, AS SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 28, 2021 
PAGE 4 

 
C. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, 

Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 57, Los Lagos 
Subdivision Phase IV, located at 2739 Seton Street, as requested by Eduardo Lopez 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JORGE ORTEGON TO APPROVE 
THE VARIANCE REQUEST OF EDUARDO LOPEZ, TO THE FRONT 10 FT. 
SETBACK AND TO DISAPPROVE THE REQUEST FOR THE 10 FT. REAR 
SETBACK. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

D. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, 
Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, being the South 18 ft. of Lot 47 and the North 
32 ft. of Lot 46, Tropical Subdivision, located at 1208 Lee Circle, as requested by Hugo  
& Melba Sotelo 

 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. GEORGE CARDENAS  
AND SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON TOAPPROVE  
THE VARIANCE REQUEST BY HUGO AND MELBA SOTELO, TO ALLOW 
FOR THE PLACEMENT OF THE PROPOSED CAR PORT, TO BE IN LINE  
WITH THE EXISTING DRIVEWAY. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
E. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, 

Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 19, Block 4, Mirasol 
Subdivision, located at 807 South 20th Avenue, as requested by Juan Betancourt 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS TO APPROVE THE 
VARIANCE REQUEST OF JUAN BETANCOURT, TO ALLOW FOR A SIDE 
SETBACK OF 4 FT. 6 IN. FOR A COVERED CARPORT WITH THE 
CONDITION THAT RAIN GUTTERS ARE INSTALLED. MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
F. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.505, 

Easement & Utilities, being Lot 25, Canton Village Subdivision, located at 2918 Cuarzo 
Street, as requested by Jason De Leon 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. GEORGE CARDENAS 
AND SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS TO APPROVE THE 
VARIANCE REQUEST OF JASON DE LEON, TO ALLOW FOR AN 
ENCROACHMENT OF 6 FT. OF THE POOL, LEAVING ONLY A 14 FT. 
SEPARATION FROM PROPERTY LINE TO STRUCTURE, AS SHOWN ON 
THE SITE PLAN. MOTION CARRIED WITH 7 BOARD MEMBERS 
PRESENT, 5 VOTING AYE, AND 2 ABSTENTIONS. BOARD MEMBER MR. 
JASON DE LEON AND BOARD MEMBER MR. JORGE ORTEGON 
ABSTAINED.  
 

 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 
JULY 28, 2021 
PAGE 5 
 

G. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 4, Section 4.203, Standards 
for New Construction, and Substantial Improvements, being a 0.16 acre tract of land out of Lots 
3 & 4 of the Monte Cristo Heights Subdivision, located at 200 West Monte Cristo Heights Road, 
as requested by Pablo Santos 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. JASON DE LEON AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ANDRE MALDONADO TO 
APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST OF PABLO SANTOS, TO ALLOW 
FOR A BASE FLOOD ELEVATION OF 85.5 FT. , AS SHOWN ON THE SITE 
PLAN. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 

 
H. Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 9, Section 9.404, 

Access Dimensions, being Lot 7, Cactus Land Phase 1 Subdivision, located at 201 
Cactus Lane, as requested by Fidel Cortez 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ALEX RIOS AND 
SECONDED BY BOARD MEMBER MR. ANDRE MALDONADO TO 
APPROVE THE VARIANCE REQUEST OF FIDEL CORTEZ, TO ALLOW 
FOR A DRIVEWAY WITH A MEASUREMENT OF 42 FT. LOCATED IN 
FRONT OF THE PROPERTY, AS SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN. MOTION 
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY WITH A VOTE OF 7-0. 
 

8. PRESENTATION 
 

A. Unified Development Code Update by: Kendig Keast Collaborative 
 
CONSULTANT DAVID BAIRD PRESENTED UPCOMING CHANGES TO THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE.  

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 
          There being no further business to consider, the meeting was adjourned at 5:57 P.M. 
 
 
 

        Alejandra Gonzalez 
       Alejandra Gonzalez, Administrative Assistant 

 



ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING
AUGUST 25, 2021

Item:
Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 8, Section 8.503,
Minimization (C) Pervious Pavements, being Lots 2 & 3, Block 47, Santa Cruz Gardens
Subdivision Unit No. 2, located at 900 West F.M. 2812, as requested by Armando Contreras

Request:
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 2, Section
2.438, Vehicle Sales, Rental and Service (B) Parking. The applicant stated that the basis for the
request is to allow for the placement of millings for a proposed drive thru open air market in lieu
of the required asphalt pavement or concrete.

Property Location and Vicinity:
The property is located on the south side of West FM 2812, approximately ¾ of a mile west of I-
69C and is currently vacant. The tract has 300 ft. of frontage along West FM 2812 and 1,231.72
ft. of depth to its deepest point for a tract size of 7.736 acres. The property was currently zoned
Commercial General (CG) District by the City Council on May 4, 2021. The surrounding zoning
in the area is Agriculture (AG) District to the north, east west, and Industrial (I) District to the
south. The surrounding area consists of vacant land.

Background and History:
The applicant is proposing a drive thru open air market of similar natures in surrounding cites.
The applicant submitted a site plan and during the review from staff it was determined a pervious
area is required for the use of the land. During meeting with the applicant it has been discussed a
secondary emergency access easement constructed of millings will be in place. Fire Department
and Solid Waste rely heavily on paved areas for the utilization of heavy vehicles such as fire
trucks and waste collection trucks. The applicant has proposed to place millings for the parking
and drive isle access in lieu of the required pervious asphalt or concrete.

Staff mailed a notice of the variance request to 13 neighboring property owners and received no
comments in favor or against this request at the time of this report.

Analysis:
They have proposed to place millings for the parking and drive isle access in lieu of the required
pervious asphalt of concrete. If approved a building permit will need to be submitted to City of
Edinburg for review of compliance with all other requirements.

Recommendation:



Staff recommends disapproval of the variance request. If approved, the applicant will need to
comply with all other requirements during the permitting process including but not limited to
building and fire codes, fire protection, parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services,
utility, pay a $40 fee payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office for the recording
of the ZBA order on this request, and any other City requirements, as applicable. A location map,
aerial map, photo, subdivision plat, site plan, and response from property owner are attached for
the Board’s consideration.

Prepared By: Approved By:
Rita Lee Guerrero
Planner I

Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA
Director of Planning & Zoning



W FM 2812

W INGLE RD

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

COTTONWOOD DR

BA
RB

 M
AR

 L
N

W MILE 21 RD

FL
OR

ES
 S

T

VA
LE

NC
IA

 C
IR

LAKE CITRUS DR
W FM 2812

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

W INGLE RD

®

AERIAL MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ARMANDO CONTRERAS
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE
CITY'S UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE, ARTICLE 8, SECTION 8.503,
MINIMIZATION (C) PERVIOUS
PAVEMENTS, BEING LOTS 2 & 3,
BLOCK 47, SANTA CRUZ GARDENS
UNIT NO.2, LCOATED AT 900 WEST
FM 2812, AS REQUESTED BY
ARMANDO CONTRERAS

SITE

1 in = 450 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE



W FM 2812

W INGLE RD

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

COTTONWOOD DR

BA
RB

 M
AR

 L
N

W MILE 21 RD

FL
OR

ES
 S

T

VA
LE

NC
IA

 C
IR

LAKE CITRUS DR
W FM 2812

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

W INGLE RD

®

ZONING MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ARMANDO CONTRERAS

SITE

1 in = 450 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



W FM 2812

W INGLE RD

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

COTTONWOOD DR

BA
RB

 M
AR

 L
N

W MILE 21 RD

FL
OR

ES
 S

T

VA
LE

NC
IA

 C
IR

LAKE CITRUS DR
W FM 2812

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

W INGLE RD

®

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ARMANDO CONTRERAS

SITE

1 in = 450 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



W FM 2812

W INGLE RD

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

BLK 47 , San ta  Cr u z G a rd en s UT  2
a r e su b o f Lo ts  14  &  15

Fe d er ick  Sa lina s

C.O .C  NO . 20 08 - 12 -0 2

of th e Pra lle  Su bd ivis ion ,
.18  a cr e of  la nd  o /o  L ot  10

30
' R

OA
D 

AC
CE

SS
 E

AS
TM

EN
T

-14

-13

-12

-11
-10

S1700-02-048-0000-

M5850-00-000-0014-
-02-03-04

M5850-00-000-0013-

-10 -05 -02

S1
70

0-0
2-0

47
-00

08
-01

S1
70

0-0
2-0

47
-00

08
-00

S1
70

0-0
2-0

46
-00

07
-00

S1
70

0-0
2-0

46
-00

08
-00

-00
09

-01

-10

-02

-01

-13
-11 -09

-07

-05
-03 -01

-00

-17-15

-05

0011-10
0011-08

0011-06

109876541 2 3

B

C

A

12

8765

4

1 2
3

LA
KE

 C
ITR

US
 SU

BD
.

161514

13

12

11

10

98

7

6

5
4

321

1 2

3

4

5

6

7

8 9 10

1098

7

6

5
4

3

2

1

S1700-02-046-0009-00

S1700-02-046-0009-02

-12 -11-13

INGLE RD.

11

10

22 23

9

15

14

16

13

17

12

18

11

19

10

39

38

37

36

35

34

33

9

COTTONWOOD DR

BA
RB

 M
AR

 L
N

W MILE 21 RD

FL
OR

ES
 S

T

VA
LE

NC
IA

 C
IR

LA
KE

 C
IT

RU
S 

DR

W FM 2812

LA
 J

AR
IT

A 
RD

W INGLE RD

®

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ARMANDO CONTRERAS
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE
CITY'S UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE, ARTICLE 8, SECTION 8.503,
MINIMIZATION (C) PERVIOUS
PAVEMENTS, BEING LOTS 2 & 3,
BLOCK 47, SANTA CRUZ GARDENS
UNIT NO.2, LCOATED AT 900 WEST
FM 2812, AS REQUESTED BY
ARMANDO CONTRERAS

SITE

1 in = 450 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
300FT NOTIFICATION
APPLICANT SITE























ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING
AUGUST 25, 2021

Item:
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, Single
Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Danielle Estates Subdivision, located
at 2405 Annette Avenue, as requested by Enrique Casarez

Request:
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section
3.301, Single-Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks. The applicant has constructed a
carport in the street yard setback of an existing single family residential lot.

Property Location and Vicinity:
The property is located on the west side of Annette Avenue, approximately 65 ft. north of
Danielle Drive. The property has 60 ft. of frontage along Annette Avenue and 127.75 ft. of depth
for a tract size of 7,665 sq. ft. The property is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC 5)
District. The surrounding zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC 5) District in all
directions. The area consists of residential uses.

Background and History:
This property is part of Danielle Estates Subdivision, which was recorded on March 5, 1996. The
applicant constructed a 22 ft. x 27 ft. carport in the front yard setback of the property.

On August 10, 2021, a Code Enforcement Officer placed a stop work order notice on said
construction, hence the variance application. A drawing was submitted to staff and after review it
was determined the proposed construction is encroaching into the 25 ft. front yard setback by 25
ft. and 2ft. into the City of Edinburg right-of-way.

Staff mailed a notice of the variance request to 44 neighboring property owners and received 2
comments in favor and none against this request at the time of this report.

Analysis:
The proposed carport will cover approximately 594 sq. ft. of driveway and right-of-way in front
of an existing single-family dwelling. The carport constructed leaves a 0 ft. separation from
property line to structure. Exhibits from the applicant have been provided for the Boards review.

Recommendation:



Staff recommends disapproval of the variance as requested. If approved, the applicant will need
to comply with all other requirements during the permitting process and pay a $40 fee payable to
the County of Hidalgo, submitted to the County Clerk’s Office for the recording of the Zoning
Board of Adjustment’s order on this request, and any other City requirements, as applicable. A
location map, aerial map, photo, site plan, and application from property owner are attached for
the Board’s consideration.

Prepared By: Approved By:
Rita Lee Guerrero
Planner I

Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA
Director of Planning & Zoning



Do
oli
ttle

Mile 17 1/2

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

Kellie

An
ne

tte
Av

eHe
ath

er

E Mile 17 1/2 Rd

®

AERIAL MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ENRIQUE CASAREZ
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE 
CITY’S U NIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.301, 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BU LK 
STANDARDS, SETBACKS, BEING 
LOT 72, DANIELLE ESTATES, 
LOCATED AT 2405 ANNETTE 
AVENU E, AS REQU ESTED BY 
ENRIQU E CASAREZ  

SITE

1 in = 200 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE



Do
oli

ttle

Mile 17 1/2

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

DA
NIE

LL
E  

 ES
TA

TE
S

2
3
4

6
5

7

9

11

8

13

14
15

12

16
17
18
19

31
30

32
33

35

34

37

40

42

39

43
44

46

47

45

21

74
75

77

79

76

8148

80
50
49

52
53
54

51

65

55

67
68
69

70
71
72

56
57
58
59

60
61
62
63
64

2425262728

29

1

10

20

38

41

36

78

66

73

2223

T2
10

0-0
0-2

48
-00

14
-10

-14-13-12-11-10-09-08-07-06-02-03

14

Kellie

An
ne

tte
Av

eHe
ath

er

E Mile 17 1/2 Rd

®

ZONING MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ENRIQUE CASAREZ

SITE

1 in = 200 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



Do
oli

ttle

Mile 17 1/2

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

DA
NIE

LL
E  

 ES
TA

TE
S

2
3
4

6
5

7

9

11

8

13

14
15

12

16
17
18
19

31
30

32
33

35

34

37

40

42

39

43
44

46

47

45

21

74
75

77

79

76

8148

80
50
49

52
53
54

51

65

55

67
68
69

70
71
72

56
57
58
59

60
61
62
63
64

2425262728

29

1

10

20

38

41

36

78

66

73

2223

T2
10

0-0
0-2

48
-00

14
-10

-14-13-12-11-10-09-08-07-06-02-03

14

Kellie

An
ne

tte
Av

eHe
ath

er

E Mile 17 1/2 Rd

®

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ENRIQUE CASAREZ

SITE

1 in = 200 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
Agriculture
Auto-Urban
Downtown District
General Commercial
Industrial
Mobile Home
Neighborhood Commercial
Office Business Park
Suburban
Urban
Urban University



Do
o li
ttle

Mile 17 1/2

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

DA
NIE
LL
E  
 ES
TA
TE
S

2
3
4

6
5

7

9

11

8

13

14
15

12

16
17
18
19

31
30

32
33

35

34

37

40

42

39

43
44

46

47

45

21

74
75

77

79

76

8148

80
50
49

52
53
54

51

65

55

67
68
69

70
71
72

56
57
58
59

60
61
62
63
64

2425262728

29

1

10

20

38

41

36

78

66

73

2223

T2
10
0-0
0-2
48
-00
14
-10

-14-13-12-11-10-09-08-07-06-02-03

14

Kellie

An
ne

tte
Av

eHe
ath

er

E Mile 17 1/2 Rd

®

MAIL OUT AND SITE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
ENRIQUE CASAREZ
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE 
CITY’S UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE, ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.301, 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BULK 
STANDARDS, SETBACKS, BEING 
LOT 72, DANIELLE ESTATES, 
LOCATED AT 2405 ANNETTE 
AVENUE, AS REQ UESTED BY 
ENRIQ UE CASAREZ  

SITE

1 in = 200 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
300FT NOTIFICATION
APPLICANT SITE



























ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING
AUGUST 25, 2021

Item:
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.301, Single
Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Solana Subdivision Phase 1, located
at 814 Imelda Street, as requested by Willmar G. Herrera

Request:
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section
3.301, Single-Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks. The applicant is proposing to
construct a carport within the street yard setback of an existing single family residential lot.

Property Location and Vicinity:
The property is located on the south side of Imelda Street, approximately 160 ft. west of Brenda
Street. The property has 51.5 ft. of frontage along Imelda Street and 100.82 ft. of depth for a tract
size of 5,192 sq. ft. The property is zoned Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC 5) District. The
surrounding zoning is Neighborhood Conservation 5 (NC 5) District to the north, east, west and
Agriculture (AG) District to the south. The area consists of residential uses and vacant land.

Background and History:
This property is part of Solana Subdivision Phase 1, which was recorded on August 20, 1999.
The applicant is proposing to construct a 20 ft. x 18 ft. carport within the front yard setback of
the property.

On August 5, 2021, City of Edinburg Code Enforcement received a complaint regarding several
violations located within the subdivision. Upon field verification it was noted the construction of
a carport was being done without a building permit. The applicant submitted a residential
building permit application on that day and during the review, it was determined the proposed
construction is encroaching into the front yard setback by 18 ft. into the 20 ft. front yard setback.
  
Staff mailed a notice of the variance request to 35 neighboring property owners and received no
comments in favor or against this request at the time of this report.

Analysis:
The proposed carport will cover approximately 360 sq. ft. of driveway at the front of an existing
single-family dwelling. If constructed, the encroachment will be 18 ft. into the required 20 ft.
front yard setback, leaving 2 ft. of separation from structure to property line. The applicant has
stated the basis for the request is have protection for their elderly grandmother from the weather
conditions when outside.

Recommendation:



Staff recommends disapproval of the variance as requested. If approved, the applicant will need
to comply with all other requirements during the permitting process and pay a $40 fee payable to
the County of Hidalgo, submitted to the County Clerk’s Office for the recording of the Zoning
Board of Adjustment’s order on this request, and any other City requirements, as applicable. A
location map, aerial map, photo, site plan, and application from property owner are attached for
the Board’s consideration.

Prepared By: Approved By:
Rita Lee Guerrero
Planner I

Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA
Director of Planning & Zoning



N 
SU

GA
R 

RD

W MILE 17 1/2 RD

W MONTE CRISTO RD

N 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 H

IG
HW

AY
 2

81

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

BR
EN

DA
 S

T

IMELDA

TR
EY

 S
T

CA
SS

IE
 S

T

JA
KE

 S
T

W ROGERS RD

®

AERIAL MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
WILLMAR G HERRERA
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE
CITY’S U NIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.301,
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BU LK
STANDARDS, SETBACKS, BEING
LOT 72, SOLANA SU BDIVISION
PHASE 1, LOCATED AT 814 IMELDA
STREET, AS REQU ESTED BY
WILLMAR G. HERRERA

SITE

1 in = 150 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE



N 
SU

GA
R 

RD

W MILE 17 1/2 RD

W MONTE CRISTO RD

N 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 H

IG
HW

AY
 2

81

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

BR
EN

DA
 S

T

IMELDA

TR
EY

 S
T

CA
SS

IE
 S

T

JA
KE

 S
T

W ROGERS RD

®

ZONING MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
WILLMAR G HERRERA

SITE

1 in = 150 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

ZONING DISTRICTS
AGRICULTURE
AUTO-URBAN RESIDENTIAL
COMMERCIAL, GENERAL
COMMERCIAL, NEIGHBORHOOD
DOWNTOWN DISTRICT
INDUSTRIAL
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 5
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 7.1
NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION MH
SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN RESIDENTIAL
URBAN UNIVERSITY



N 
SU

GA
R 

RD

W MILE 17 1/2 RD

W MONTE CRISTO RD

N 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 H

IG
HW

AY
 2

81

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

BR
EN

DA
 S

T

IMELDA

TR
EY

 S
T

CA
SS

IE
 S

T

JA
KE

 S
T

W ROGERS RD

®

FUTURE LANDUSE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
WILLMAR G HERRERA

SITE

1 in = 150 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
APPLICANT SITE

FUTURE LANDUSE
Agriculture
Auto-Urban
Downtown District
General Commercial
Industrial
Mobile Home
Neighborhood Commercial
Office Business Park
Suburban
Urban
Urban University



N 
SU

GA
R 

RD

W MILE 17 1/2 RD

W MONTE CRISTO RD

N 
BU

SI
NE

SS
 H

IG
HW

AY
 2

81

SITE LOCATION MAP

CASE CAPTION:

BR
EN

DA
 S

T

IMELDA

TR
EY

 S
T

CA
SS

IE
 S

T

JA
KE

 S
T

W ROGERS RD

®

MAILOUT AND SITE MAP

APPLICANT NAME:
WILLMAR G HERRERA
CONSIDER VARIANCE TO THE
CITY’S U NIFIED DEVELOPMENT
CODE ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.301,
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BU LK
STANDARDS, SETBACKS, BEING
LOT 72, SOLANA SU BDIVISION
PHASE 1, LOCATED AT 814 IMELDA
STREET, AS REQU ESTED BY
WILLMAR G. HERRERA

SITE

1 in = 150 ft

Legend
CITY LIMITS
300FT NOTIFICATION
APPLICANT SITE























ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT REGULAR MEETING
AUGUST 25, 2021

Item:
Consider Variance to the City’s Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.505, Easements
& Utilities, being Lot 7, Summerset Estates Subdivision, located at 5001 Juno Court, as
requested by Rogelio & Christina Deleon

Request:
The applicant is requesting a variance to the City’s Unified Development Code, Article 3,
Section 3.505, Easements & Utilities. The applicant stated that the basis of the request is to allow
for the construction of a pool within two easements totaling 40 feet. One of the easements is a 10
ft. utility easement and the other is a 30 ft. exclusive easement to Hidalgo County Irrigation
District #2 located at the rear of the property.

Property Location and Vicinity:
The property is located at the end of the cul-de-sac on Juno Court, approximately 350 ft. north of
Maravilla Drive. The property is located on a cul-de-sac and has 41.48 ft. of frontage along Juno
Court and 126.24 ft. of depth to its deepest point for a tract size of 8,779.3 square feet. This
property is currently zoned Auto Urban Residential (AU) District. Surrounding zoning is Auto
Urban Residential (AU) District to the north, east and south, and Commercial General (CG)
District to the west. The adjacent land uses consist of residential uses.

Background and History:
Summerset Estates Division was recorded on August 22, 2014. The applicant is proposing to
construct a pool at the rear of the property located within a 40 ft. drainage and utility easement. A
site plan for the pool was received on June 18, 2021 and has been reviewed by staff. During the
review it was determined a section of the home was constructed over the utility easement leaving
only a 30 ft. separation from the home to the rear yard property line. A building permit for the
home was issued on October 21, 2016. However, there is no record of a variance for the portion
of the home that is encroaching. Should the variance be granted for the pool, a building permit
will need to be submitted for review by City staff. No other variances of this nature have been
granted in this area.

Staff mailed a notice of the variance request to 44 neighboring property owners and received one
comment in favor and none against this request at the time of this report.

Analysis:
The applicant has indicated that the basis of the request is to allow for the construction of a pool
within the 40 ft. Hidalgo County Irrigation District and utility easement. The applicant has
requested leaving only an 11.2 ft. separation from north property line to pool and 39.10 ft. from
west property line to pool. Drawings have been provided for the Board’s consideration.



Recommendation:

Staff recommends approval of the variance request for the pool with a contingency that a letter of
approval from the Hidalgo County Irrigation District #2 be provided prior to building permit
issuance. Staff also recommends approval of the non-conforming home that is encroaching into
the 10 ft. utility easement as shown on the survey. If approved, it will bring the existing home
into conformance with requirements. If approved, the applicant will need to comply with all other
requirements during the permitting process including but not limited to building and fire codes,
fire protection, parking, landscape buffer-yards, solid waste services, utility, pay a $40 fee
payable to the County of Hidalgo, County Clerk’s Office for the recording of the ZBA order on
this request, and any other City requirements, as applicable. A location map, aerial map, photo,
subdivision plat, site plan, and response from property owner are attached for the Board’s
consideration.

Prepared By: Approved By:
Rita Lee Guerrero
Urban Planner

Kimberly A. Mendoza, MPA
Director of Planning & Zoning























01
/2

7/
21

02
/2

4/
21

03
/3

1/
21

04
/2

8/
21

05
/2

6/
21

06
/3

0/
21

07
/2

8/
21

Juan Lopez- Chairperson P P A A
Samuel Simon- Co-Chairperson A P A P P P P
George Cardenas- Regular P P P A A P P
Jason De Leon- Regular P P P P P P P
Andre Maldonado- Regular P P A P A A P
Mario Escobar- Alternate A A A A A A A
Eddie Garza- Alternate P A P P P P P
Jorge Ortegon- Alternate A A A A A A P
Alex Rios- Alternate P A P P P A P

Juan Lopez- Chairperson
Samuel Simon- Co-Chairperson
George Cardenas- Regular
Jason De Leon- Regular
Andre Maldonado- Regular
Mario Escobar- Alternate
Eddie Garza- Alternate
Jorge Ortegon- Alternate
Alex Rios- Alternate

2021 ATTENDANCE RECORD                                                                                                      
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS COMMISSION MEETINGS

2021 ATTENDANCE RECORD                                                                                                      
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS COMMISSION WORKSHOPS


	ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
	 Consider excusing the absence of Board Member Mario Escobar from the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting
	 Memo

	 Consider approval of the Minutes for the July 28, 2021 Regular Meeting
	 Minutes

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 8, Section 8.503, Minimization (C) Pervious Pavements, being Lots 2 & 3, Block 47, Santa Cruz Gardens Subdivision Unit No. 2, located at 900 West F.M. 2812, as requested by Armando Contreras
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Site Plan
	 Site Plan Review Comments
	 Site Picture A
	 Site Picture B
	 Site Picture C
	 Site Picture D

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code, Article 3, Section 3.301, Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Danielle Estates Subdivision, located at 2405 Annette Avenue, as requested by Enrique Casarez
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey
	 Site Plan
	 Picture
	 Notification Response A
	 Notification Response B

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.301, Single Family Residential Bulk Standards, Setbacks, being Lot 72, Solana Subdivision Phase 1, located at 814 Imelda Street, as requested by Willmar G. Herrera
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Building Permit Application
	 Picture
	 Notification Response

	 Consider Variance to the City's Unified Development Code Article 3, Section 3.505, Easements & Utilities, being Lot 7, Summerset Estates Subdivision, located at 5001 Juno Court, as requested by Rogelio & Christina Deleon
	 Aerial Map
	 Zoning Map
	 Future Land Use Map
	 Mailout and Site Map
	 Application
	 Survey A
	 Survey B
	 Residential Spec. Sheet
	 Picture
	 Notification Response

	 Zoning Board of Adjustments- Attendance Roster

